BABERGH DISTRICT COUNCIL

BABERGH CABINET

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BABERGH CABINET HELD IN KING EDMUND CHAMBER - ENDEAVOUR HOUSE, 8 RUSSELL ROAD, IPSWICH ON THURSDAY, 11 OCTOBER 2018

PRESENT:

John Ward - Chairman

Kathryn Grandon Margaret Maybury Nick Ridley Frank Lawrenson Tina Campbell Jan Osborne Derek Davis Simon Barrett

In Attendance:

Councillor Hinton

Chief Executive – (AC) Corporate Manager – Democratic Services (JR)

60 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

60.1 There were no apologies for absence.

61 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY COUNCILLORS

61.1 There were no declarations of interest.

62 <u>BCA/18/37 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13</u> <u>SEPTEMBER 2018</u>

It was Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2018 be confirmed as a true record.

63 <u>TO RECEIVE NOTIFICATION OF PETITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE</u> <u>COUNCIL'S PETITION SCHEME</u>

63.1 There were no petitions received.

64 QUESTIONS BY COUNCILLORS

64.1 There were no questions received.

65 BCA/18/38 FORTHCOMING DECISIONS LIST

65.1 The Forthcoming Decisions List was noted subject to the following changes:-

• CAB42 - Report to be deferred until further notice.

66 <u>MATTERS REFERRED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY OR JOINT AUDIT</u> <u>AND STANDARDS COMMITTEES</u>

66.1 There were no matters referred by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the Joint Audit and Standards Committee.

67 <u>BCA/18/39 EARMARKING OF FUNDS FROM THE BUSINESS RATES</u> <u>RETENTION PILOT</u>

67.1 Councillor Ward introduced the report and informed Cabinet that the report presented proposals for the use of the funds that Babergh would receive from Suffolk's 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot for 2018-19.

67.2 An estimated total of 11.2 million would be allocated across the County with Babergh getting about 1.1 million. The figures were based on an estimate of business rate collection for this year. The actual collection may differ and so the actual amount received might differ slightly as well.

67.3 Councillor Ward went on to say that there was still an estimated £90,000 to be earmarked which would be decided upon soon. One of the criteria set by Government was that the additional monies retained should be invested in growth initiatives to increase the business rates base in the district. Each project had a summary proforma and these have been submitted to Suffolk County Council. They will be developed into full business cases and these will be submitted for approval.

67.4 Councillor Ward detailed a very brief introduction to each proforma.

67.5 Firstly for Belle Vue and Hamilton Road. These 2 projects were key to the regeneration of this part of Sudbury. These schemes would be difficult to deliver but both have unique opportunities to develop the retail, leisure and cultural offering and support the growing economy through additional jobs and skills.

67.6 Secondly the Delphi site in Sudbury - the money earmarked here will go towards supporting the South Suffolk Task Force in the undertaking of work to progress opportunities for the reuse of this site following the closure of the Delphi factory. Its remit was broad, to look strategically at the whole of South Suffolk's economy. The Task Force would determine what work needed to be done going forward and these funds would support all of this work, along with match funding opportunities and public and private sector collaborative investment. Initially Babergh has commissioned an options appraisal and viability study which would present its findings to the Task Force next month. In parallel the new Anglia LEP in partnership with Delphi and government departments had produced a marketing brochure for international circulation to market the site to potential investors interested in maintaining the existing industrial use and particularly the workforce there. 67.7 The next two schemes are being done in conjunction with Mid Suffolk District Council. The first of these is the setting up of a central Suffolk Chamber of Commerce and the funds to be earmarked there were to provide seed funding to set up a self-sustaining Chamber of Commerce in central Suffolk affiliated to the Suffolk Chamber. This is the part of the County that currently doesn't have coverage and consequently there is a lack of business representation, lobbying and intelligence sharing in the area. There is a launch window this year, but it does need support to get started and the Council have been asked to provide £15,000 towards support costs for each of the 3 years it's expected to take to get this up and running.

67.8 The next item in conjunction with Mid Suffolk DC is the provision of an Inclusive Growth Engagement Officer and it is to recruit 2 fixed term posts to support the inclusive growth agenda which has been challenging for communities to understand and support. The Council needs to deliver a programme of engagement to provide support, confidence and guidance to communities in relation to planning for growth, communities and well-being agendas.

67.9 Councillor Ward then **MOVED** the recommendations in the report which Councillor Osborne seconded.

67.10 Councillor Ridley **MOVED** an amendment to recommendation 3.2 to remove the last six words of the recommendation as he felt that the delegation should not be limited to £20k per project.

67.11 Councillor Davis seconded Councillor Ridley's amendment and also informed Cabinet that Mid Suffolk had amended their contribution to the setting up of a Central Suffolk Chamber of Commerce to 10k per year for three years and suggested that Babergh should fund the same amount.

67.12 Councillor Grandon asked if the title of the Inclusive Growth officer could be changed as it did not really reflect what the officer would be doing?

67.13 Councillor Lawrenson said whilst supporting these projects he felt strongly that as the Council had a lot of opportunities with significant sums of money coming in to the Council he would like the Council to set aside this money over the next eight years so that the Council could deliver the sort of projects that would transform the landscape for places like Sudbury.

67.14 Councillor Hinton asked why further funding was needed to facilitate Angel Court and requested that the proformas were circulated to all councillors so that they could see the background to the schemes.

67.15 In response Councillor Ward stated that the funding was there to allocate money because Angel Court was a significant development in Hadleigh but it was going to be 100% affordable housing and would need some funding to kick start and to progress that development. He also agreed that the proformas should be circulated to all councillors.

67.16 The amendment to remove the last six words of recommendation 3.2 and to alter the funding to the Central Chamber of Commerce to 10k per year for three years was PUT to the meeting and CARRIED.

It was Resolved:-

- (i) That funds be earmarked to the schemes as detailed in Appendix A of the report subject to the figure in Item 5 (Establishment of a Central Suffolk Chamber of Commerce) being amended to £30K.
- (ii) That the Strategic Director, in consultation with the Finance Cabinet Member and other relevant Cabinet Members and Suffolk County Council be granted delegation to change the approved projects or identify new projects for earmarked funds.

Reason for Decision:

To enable the specific identified projects to be progressed and the conditions of the pilot status to be complied with.

68 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC (WHICH TERM INCLUDES THE PRESS)

It was Resolved:

That pursuant to Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the business specified in the report on the grounds that if the public were present during that item, it is likely that there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

69 <u>BCA/18/40 CONFIRMATION OF THE CONFIDENTIAL MINUTE OF THE MEETING</u> <u>HELD ON THE 13 SEPTEMBER 2018</u>

69.1 Councillor Maybury requested that the exact percentages for the clawback figures be included in Minute 59.3. In response the Strategic Director confirmed that there was still some negotiation around the clawback figures and therefore these could not be confirmed at this time therefore the Minute as read should stand.

It was Resolved:-

That subject to the grammatical errors being corrected, the confidential Minutes from the meeting held on 13 September 2018 be approved as a true record.

The business of the meeting was concluded at 6.05 pm.

.....

Chair